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HILL, INZINA & COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Honorable John D. McAdams, Jll, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Village of Mer Rouge, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund ofVillage of Mer Rouge, Louisiana (the 
"Village"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibilitv 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the Village's preparation and fair presentation of the tinancial statements in order 
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to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
and each major fund of the Village as of December 31,2018, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Current Year Adoption ofNew Accounting Standard and Restatement of Net Position 

As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, for the year ended December 31, 2018, 
the Vi !!age adopted a new accounting standard, Governmental Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting 
by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other 
postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local 
governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
the managemenfs discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule, the schedule of 
proportionate share of net position liability, and the schedule of contributions be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements. The other 
supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 

This other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The other supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards 

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated April 4, 2019, on our consideration of the Village's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standard<; in 
consideting the Village's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Is/ Hill, Jnzina & Co. 

April4, 2019 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Part 1 of2) 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2018 

As management of Village of Mer Rouge. Louisiana (the ''Village'"), we offer readers of the 
Village·s financial statements this narrative overviev. and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Village for the year ended December 31. 2018. This discussion and analysis of management is 
designed to provide an objective and easy-to-read analysis ofthe Village's financial activities based 
on currently k.nov.11 facts, decisions, or conditions. It is intended to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the Village's finances. It is also intended to provide readers with an analysis of the 
short-term and long-term activities of the Village based on infonnation presented in the financial 
report and fiscal policies that have been adopted by the Village. Specifically, this section is designed 
to assist the readers in focusing on significant financial issues. provide an overview of the Village's 
financial activity. identify changes in the Village's financial position (its ability to address the next 
and subsequent years' challenges). identify any material deviations from the financial plan (approved 
budget), and identify individual issues or concerns of individual funds. 

As with other sections of this financial report, the infom1ation contained within this discussion and 
analysis of management should be considered only a part of a greater whole. The readers of this 
statement should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the footnotes 
and supplementary information that are provided in addition to this discussion and analysis of 
management. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's financial 
statements. The Village's basic financial statements consist of the following components: 

1. Government-wide financial statements. 
2. Fund financial statements. 
3. Notes to financial statements. 

In addition to the basic financial statements. the Village also includes in a subsequent section of this 
report additional information to supplement the basic financial statements. 

1. Government-wide financial statements 

Government-wide financial statements are designed by GASB Statement No. 34 to change the 
way in which government financial statements are presented. It now provides readers for the first 
time with a concise "entity-wide'' statement of net position and statement of activities, seeking 
to give the users of the financial statements a broad overview of the Village's financial position 
and results of operations in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
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The statement of net position presents infonnation on all of the Village's assets and liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private­
sector companies. The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as net position. Over 
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the Village is improving or weakening. Evaluation of the overall economic 
health of the Village would extend to other nonfinancial factors in addition to the financial 
infonnation provided in this report. 

The statement of activities presents information detailing how the Village· s net position changed 
during the most recent year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of 
when cash is received or paid. An important purpose of this statement is to show the financial 
reliance of the Village's distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the citizenry of 
the Village. 

The government-wide financial statements report governmental activities of the Village that are 
principally supported by tax revenues. Governmental activities include general administrative, 
sanitation, public safety (police), and public works (streets) services. 

2. Fund financial statements 

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific 
activities or objectives. The Village uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related laws and regulations. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial 
statements focus on the Village as a whole with major funds being separately reported. 

The Village has two types of funds: 

1. Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass essentially 
the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. However, the focus is very different with fund statements providing a distinctive 
view of the Village's governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal 
accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources during the year and balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the year. They are useful in evaluating annual 
financing requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable 
resources for the near term. 

2. The proprietary fund is reported in the fund financial statements and generally reports 
services for which the Village charges customers a fee. The fund essentially encompasses 
the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. 
Services are provided to customers external to the Village. Proprietary fund financial 
statements provide both long-term and short-term financial information consistent with the 
focus provided by the government-wide financial statements but with more detail. 
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As the government-wide focus includes the long-tcm1 view, comparisons between these two 
perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-tenn financing decisions. 
A reconciliation from both the govenunental fund balance sheet and the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances to the government-wide statements is provided to 
assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives. 

3. Notes to financial statements 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide infom1ation essential to a full 
understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes begin 
inunediately following the basic financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

The following provides a summary of the net position (in thousands of dollars) of the Village as of 
December 31: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Totals 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Current and other assets $ 974 $ 965 $ 287 $ 320 $ 1,261 $ 1,285 
Capital assets 1,368 1.408 1 401 1 479 2.769 2,887 

Total assets $ 2,342 $ 2,373 $ 1,688 $ 1,799 $ 4,030 $ 4,172 
Deferred outflows of 
resources $ 66 $ 51 $ 56 $ 66 $ 122 $ 117 

Other liabilities $ 486 $ 381 $ 521 $ 498 $ 1,007 $ 879 
Deferred inflows of 
resources $ 89 $ 88 $ 7 $ 6 $ 96 $ 94 

Net position: 
Net investment in 
capital assets $ 1,368 $ 1,408 $ 1,401 $ 1,479 $ 2,769 $ 2,887 
Unrestricted (deficit) 465 547 ( 185) ( 118) 280 429 

Total net position $ 1,833 $ 1,955 $ 1,216 $ 1.361 $ 3.049 $ 3.316 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Village's financial 
position. The Village will use the unrestricted net position to meet the ongoing obligations to users 
of its services and creditors. By far the largest portion of the Village's net position as December 31, 
2018 consists of the investment in capital assets. The Village uses these capital assets to provide 
services to its citizenry; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
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The following summarizes the Village's net position changes (in thousands of dollars) between the 
two years ended December 3 I, 2018 and 2017: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Acti\ities Activities Totals 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 104 $ 112 $ 291 $ 280 $ 395 $ 392 
Operating grants and 
contributions 18 18 18 18 
Capital grants and 
contributions 11 40 II 40 

General revenues: 
Taxes 382 385 382 385 
Intergovernmental 2 2 2 2 
Unrestricted 

investment earnings 
and miscellaneous 14 23 1 1 15 24 
Total revenues $ 520 $ 540 $ 303 $ 321 $ 823 $ 861 

Expenses: 
General government $ 298 $ 308 $ $ $ 298 $ 308 
Sanitation 2 2 
Public safety 210 223 210 223 
Public works 13 4 13 4 
Depreciation 75 71 75 71 
Water and sewer 420 432 420 432 

Total expenses $ 596 $ 608 $ 420 $ 432 $ 1.016 $ 1.040 

Increase (decrease) 
in net positions $( 76) $( 68) $( 117) $( 111) $( 193) $( 179) 

Net positions -
beginning (restated) 1.909 2.022 1.333 1.473 3.242 3 495 

Net positions- ending $ 1.833 $ 1.954 $ 1,216 $ 1,362 $ 3,049 $ 3,316 

The Village's total revenues and the total cost of all programs and services decreased by $38,000 and 
$24,000, respectively. The Village's expenses cover a range of services with the majority related 
to personnel costs. 
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Business-Type Activities 

General revenues are those available for the Village to pay for the governmental activities. For the 
year ended December 31, 2018, taxes were the largest general revenue source for the Village. Sales 
taxes were the largest individual tax revenue source. 

Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties outside the Village's 
taxpayers or citizenry. As a whole, they reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the 
Village's general revenues. 

Operating revenues and expenses of the business-type activities for the year ended December 31, 
2018 increased $11,535 and $21,100, respectively, from the previous year. 

Financial Analysis of Governmental Fund 

As of December 31, 2018, the Village's governmental fund reported an ending fund balance of 
$847,561, a decrease of$21,471 from $869,032 as of December 31, 2017. The fund balance of the 
governmental fund is classified as unassigned as it is available for any purpose. 

Budgetary Highlights 

The Village made amendments to its General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund budgets for the year 
ended December 31, 2018. Actual revenues of the General Fund of $514,418 failed to meet 
budgeted revenues of$563,000 by $48,582 or 8.6%. Actual expenditures and other financing uses 
of$535,889 were less than budgeted expenditures and other financing uses of$558,820 by $22,931. 

Capital Assets 

As ofDecember 31,2018, the Village had invested $2.8 million in a broad range of capital assets, 
including land, buildings, vehicles, streets, and water and sewer systems. The capital asset additions 
made during the year ended December 31, 2018 were for a vehicle and the completion of 
construction projects. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

Total revenues and expenditures in the Village's proposed budget for the General Fund for the year 
ending December 31, 2019 remained the same as the final totals budgeted for the year ended 
December 31,2018. A beginning fund balance of$873,180 was included in the 2019 budget while 
$847,561 was actually available. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village's financial picture for 
all those with an interest in the Village's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the 
Clerk, P.O. Box 238, Mer Rouge, Louisiana 71261-0238. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
December 31, 20 I8 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Totals 

ASSETS 

Cash $ 5I3,209 $ 45,676 $ 558,885 
Pooled deposits 56,973 56,973 
Certificates of deposit 334,265 147,140 481,405 
Receivables: 

Property taxes 10,648 10,648 
Accounts 21,668 21,668 

Due from other funds 59,326 47,837 107,163 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 7,434 7,434 
Certificates of deposit I7,000 17,000 

Capital assets: 
Land 74,583 20,I10 94,693 
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 1,293,502 1.381,146 2,674.648 

Total assets $ 2,342.506 $ 1.688,0 II $ 4,030.517 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Resources related to pensions $ 65,561 $ 56,45] $ I22.0I2 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable $ 5,134 $ 3,053 $ 8,187 
Payroll withholdings 4,392 2,340 6,732 
Due to other funds 34,709 61,639 96,348 
Payable from restricted assets: 
Customers' deposits 21,474 21,474 

Net pension 273,594 184,560 458,154 
Net other postemployment benefit 
(OPEB) obligation 168.038 248,389 416 427 

T otalliabilities $ 485.867 $ 521,455 $ 1,007.322 

(continued) 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 
December 31, 20 I 8 

GoYemmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Property taxes $ 68,422 $ 
Resources related to pensions 21,033 6 565 

Total defeiTed inflows of resources $ 89.455 $ 6,565 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets $ 1.368.085 $ I ,401.256 
Unrestricted (deficit) 464.660 ( 184,814) 

Total net position $ 1.832.745 s 1.216.442 

See notes to financial statements. 

-10-

Totals 

$ 68.422 
27.598 

$ 96.020 

$ 2.769,341 
279,846 

$ 3.049.187 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, 1 ,OUJSIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
As of and for the Year Ended Decem bcr 31 , 201 8 

Program Revenues 
Operating 
Grants and 

Capital 
Grants and 

Expenses 
Charges for 

Services Contributions Contributions 
Functions/Programs: 

Governmental activities: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Depreciation 

$ 

Total governmental activities $ 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer 

297,807 
210,345 

13,285 
74 784 

596,221 

419 995 

$ 91 ,291 $ 
12,904 

$ 104,195 $ 

291.276 

$ 
17,999 

17,999 $ 

11 331 

Total government $ 1,016.216 $ 395.471 $ 17.999 $ 11,331 

See notes to financial statements. 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property 
Franchise 
Sales 

Intergovernmental 
Unrestricted investment eamings and 

miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Changes in net positions 

Net positions -beginning (restated) 

Net positions - ending 



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Totals 

$( 206,516) $ $( 206,516) 
( 179,442) ( 179,442) 
( 1 3,285) ( 13,285) 
( 74,784} ( 74.784} 

$( 474,027) $ $( 474,027) 

( I 17,388} ( 117,388} 

$( 474,027) $( 117,388} $( 591.415} 

$ 68,898 $ $ 68,898 
22,598 22,598 

290,400 290,400 
1,591 1,591 

14 436 952 15,388 

$ 397,923 $ 952 $ 398,875 

$( 76,104) $( 116,436) $( 192,540) 

1,908,849 1,332.878 3.241,727 

$ 1.832.745 $ 1,216,442 $ 3.049,187 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENTAL FUND- GENERAL FUND 
December 31, 20 18 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Pooled deposits 
Certificates of deposit 
Property taxes receivable 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Payroll withholdings and accruals 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Property taxes 

FUND BALANCE 

Unassigned 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balance 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

513,209 
56,973 

334,265 
10,648 
45.123 

960218 

5,134 
4,392 

34.709 
44,235 

68,422 

847 561 

960,218 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND Cl IANGES 
fN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 
Licenses and permits 
1 ntcrgovernmental 
Fees, charges, and commissions for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest and miscellaneous 

Total revenues $ 

Ex pend i tures: 
Current: 

General government $ 
Public safety 
Public works 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures $ 

Net change in fund balance $( 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending $ 

See notes to financial statements. 
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381,896 
77,851 
19,590 
13,440 
12,904 
8.737 

514,418 

286,276 
201,950 

13,285 
34 378 

535,889 

21,471) 

869,032 

847,561 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET 
TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 3 L 2018 

Total fund balance - governmental fund balance sheet 

Amounts reported for go\'emmental activities in statement of net 
position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Net pension liability docs not require the use of current financial 
resources and therefore is not reported in the funds. 

Contributions to the OPEB obligation are reported as expenditures 
in the governmental funds. However, these amounts are reported 
as a reduction of long-term liabilities in the governmental activities. 

Total net position of governmental activities- government-wide 
statement of net position 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$ 847,561 

1,368.085 

( 214,863) 

( 168.038) 

$ 1.832.745 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
December 31, 2018 

Net change in fund balance - gover1ID1ental fund $( 21,471) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in statement of 
activities are different because: 

The governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount 
by which depreciation expense ($74,784) exceeded capital outlays 
($34,3 78) in the current period. ( 40,406) 

Proportionate share of non-employer contributions to pension plans do 
not provide current financial resources and are not reported as revenue 
in the governmental funds. 5,699 

Gove1nmental funds report current year pension contributions as 
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities. these 
contributions are reported as deferred inflows of resources and the 
proportionate share of the plans' pension expense is reported as such. ( 11,470) 

OPEB obligations reported in the statement of activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not repo1ted 
as expenditures in governmental funds. ( 8.456) 

Changes in net position of governmental activities -government-wide 
statement of activities $( 76,1 04) 

See notes to financial statements. 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION- PROPRIETARY FUND- WATER AND SEWER FUND 
December 31, 2018 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Certificates of deposit 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 
Ce1iifieates of deposit 

Capital assets: 
Land 

ASSETS 

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 
Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Resources related to pensions 

Current liabi I ities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll withholdings 
Due to other funds 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Customers' deposits 
Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Net pension 

LIABILITIES 

Net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligation 
Total long-term liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Resources related to pensions 

-16-

$ 45,676 
147,140 
21,668 
47,837 

7,434 
17,000 

20,110 
1.381.146 

$ 1.688,011 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

56.451 

3,053 
2,340 

61,639 

21 474 
88,506 

184,560 
248 389 
432,949 

6,565 

(continued) 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRI ET AR Y FUND -
WATER AND SEWER FUND (Continued) 

December 31, 20 18 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$ 1,401,256 
( 184.814) 

$ 1.216,442 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
NET POSITION- PROPRJETARY FUND- WATER AND SEWER FUND 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

Operating revenues: 
Water and sewer fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Depreciation 
Insurance 
Office 
Other 
Repairs and maintenance 
Retirement 
Salaries 
Supplies 
Taxes - payroll 
Utilities and fuel 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest 
State grant 
Net pension 
Net OPEB obligation 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Change in net position 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$( 

$ 

( 
( 

$( 

$( 

270,654 
20,622 

291.276 

111,980 
48,974 

1,645 
8,705 

65,284 
23,301 
94,031 
11,671 
7,418 

20 114 
393,123 

101.847) 

952 
11 ,331 
12,814) 
14.058) 
14.589) 

116,436) 

Net position- beginning (restated) 1,332,878 

Net position- ending $ 1,216,442 

See notes to financial statements. 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUND­
WATER AND SEWER FUND 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2018 

CASH fLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED BY) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of certificates of deposit 

CAS! I FLOWS FROM (USED BY) CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of capital assets 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash - beginning 

Cash- ending 
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$ 291,276 
( 160,730) 
( 101,449) 

$ 29,097 

( 841) 

( 33.807) 

$( 5,551) 

58 661 

$ 53.110 

(continued) 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRic rAR Y rill\D -
WATER AND SEWER FUND (Continued) 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Jncrease) decrease in due from other governments 
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 
(Jncrease) decrease in deferred outflows 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
Increase (decrease) in liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Increase (decrease) in net pension 
Increase (decrease) in net other OPEB obligation 
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflo\VS 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$( 101,847) 

111,980 
3,966 

40,265 
( 15.546) 

9,749 
( 13.781) 

2.335 
5.850 

725 
( 14.565) 

42.996 
498 

( 43.528) 

$ 29.097 



VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of and for the Year Ended December 3 1 , 2018 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Village of Mer Rouge, Louisiana (the "Village"), operates under a mayor-board of 
aldermen form of government in accordance with the provisions of the Lawrason Act. 
Citizens elect the mayor (at large) and three council members (by districts) who are each 
compensated. The Village is located in northeast Louisiana, its population is 
approximately 600, and it employs approximately 10 people. As of December 31, 2018, 
the Village services approximately 400 utility customers and maintains approximately three 
miles of streets. 

The Village provides general administrative, public safety (police), public works (streets), 
and utility services. 

GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity, and Statement No. 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units- an amendment ofGASB Statement 
No. 1-1, established criteria for determining the govemmental reporting entity and 
component units that should be included within the rep011ing entity. Under provisions of 
these statements, the Village is considered a primary govemment, as it is a special purpose 
govemment that has a separately elected goveming body, is legally separate, and is fiscally 
independent of other state or local governments. As used in GASB Statements No. 14 and 
39. fiscally independent means that the Village may, without the approval or consent of 
another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set 
rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. 

The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is 
financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining 
financial accountability. This criteria includes: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization ' s governing body, and 
a. the ability of the municipality to impose its will on that organization and/or 
b. the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 

impose specific financial burdens on the municipality. 

2. Organizations for which the municipality does not appoint a voting majority but are 
fiscally dependent on the municipality. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity' s financial statements would be 
misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or 
significance of the relationship. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Based on the criteria, the Village has detem1ined that Sewer District No. 1 of Village of 
Mer Rouge, Louisiana, is a component unit of the reporting entity. As required by 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), these financial statements present the 
primary government (the Village) and its component unit. The component unit is reported 
as part of the municipality and blended with the appropriate municipality funds. 

Component units that are legally separate from the municipality, but are so intertwined 
with the municipality that they are, in substance, the same as the municipality are blended 
component units. For a component unit to be blended, the organization's board and the 
municipality must be substantively the same, or the organization must provide services 
entirely or almost entirely to the municipality. 

Considered also in the determination of component units of the reporting entity were Sixth 
Ward Fire Protection District No. 1 of Morehouse Parish, Louisiana, and Mer Rouge 
Volunteer Fire Department. It was detennined that this governmental and volunteer entity, 
respectively, are not component units of the Village's reporting entity. 

The more significant of the Village' s accounting policies arc described below: 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and 
the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the 
Village as a whole. The statements distinguish governmental activities, generally 
supported by taxes and general revenues, from business-type activities, generally 
financed in whole or in patt with fees charged to external customers. 

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program 
revenues directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly 
of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or summm·ize more than one 
fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct 
functional activity. Program revenues include: (a) charges for services which report 
licenses, pennits, fees, fines, forfeitures, and other charges to users ofthe Village's 
services; (b) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating 
activities; and (c) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, 
construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues arc subject to 
externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue 
sources not properly included with program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund financial statements are provided for govenunental and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported in separate columns. 

Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Financial Statement Presentation: 

The financial statements of the Village are prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The government-wide statements report using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting generally 
including the reclassifications or eliminations of internal activity (between or within 
funds). However, internal eliminations do not include services provided to Village 
departments. Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. Proprietary 
fund financial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting 
although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded 
when eruned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for 
which they are levied while grru1ts are recognized when grantor eligibility 
requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The 
Village considers revenues to be available ifthey are collected within 60 days of the 
end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred. 

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and water and sewer fees. In general, other revenues are 
recognized when cash is received. 

Operating income reported in the proprietary fund financial statement includes 
revenues and expenses related to primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal 
operating revenues for the proprietary fund are charges to customers for sales or 
services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and 
include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues are 
classified as nonoperating in the financial statement. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TE\1ENTS 

Fund Types and Major Funds: 

The Village reports the following major govenunental fund: 

General f'und - the general operating fund of the Village and accounts for all 
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

The Village reports the following major proprieta.I) fund: 

Water and Sewer Fund- accounts for operations where the intent of the goveming 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: 

The Board of Aldermen adopted annual budgets for the General f'und and Water and 
Sewer Fund on December 12, 20 I 7. The annual budgets were prepared in accordance 
with the basis of accounting utilized by the funds. The Village Clerk is authorized to 
transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments; however, any revisions that 
alter the total expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated must 
be approved by the Board of Aldenncn. Amendments were made to both budgets on 
December 11. 2018 and the budgetary comparison schedule, included as 
supplementary information in the accompanying financial statements. includes the 
original and final budgeted amounts of the General Fund. All annual appropriations 
lapse at fiscal year end. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly. actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Cash and Ce1tificates of Deposit: 

Cash includes amounts in demand and time deposits. Under state law, the Village 
may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time 
deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the 
United States, or under the laws of the United States. 

State Jaw and the Village's investment policy allow the Village to invest in 
collateralized certificates of deposits, government backed securities, commercial 
paper, the state sponsored investment pooL and mutual funds consisting solely of 
government backed securities. 

Certificates of deposit and pooled deposits of the Village are reported at cost, which 
approximates market value. 

Receivables: 

Significant receivables include property taxes and amounts due from customers for 
utility services. Un-billcd utility service receivables resulting from utility services 
rendered from the last date prior to the end of the fiscal year that meters were read to 
the end of the fiscal year are considered immaterial in amount and are not included in 
the amounts recorded as due from utility customers. 

Uncollectible Allowance: 

The statements contain no provision for uncollectible accounts. Village management 
is of the opinion that such allowance would be immaterial in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Restricted Assets/Liabilities: 

Meter deposits collected from utility customers are restricted to payment of amounts 
owed to the Village and/or refunded to the customer upon the customer no longer 
utilizing the system. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Village's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Interfund Transactions: 

Activity between funds that are representative oflending/borrowing arrangements and 
other miscellaneous receivables/payables outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are 
reported as due to/from other funds (i.e. the CUJTent portion ofinterfund loans) in the 
fund financial statements. 

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity that are substantially for the 
purposes of subsidizing operating functions, funding capital projects and asset 
acquisitions, or maintaining debt service on a routine basis are reported as transfers 
between funds of the reporting entity. 

Interfund transactions are eliminated in the government-wide financial statements 
while all arc reported in the fund financial statements. 

Capital Assets and Depreciation: 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., streets and water and sewer system), with useful lives ofmore than one year are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. All other infrastructure assets (e.g., bridges, 
drainage systems, and similar items) are considered fully depreciated by the Village 
and are not included in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are 
recorded at historical cost. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Village maintains a threshold 
level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. 

When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation 
are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded 
in operations. 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Buildings and building improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Streets 
Water and sewer system 
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5 - 15 years 

40 years 
20- 40 years 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Pensions: 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability. deferred outflows of resources, 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
infom1ation about the fiduciary net position of the Municipal Employees Retirement 
System and the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (the "Plans''), and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans· fiduciary net position have been detem1ined 
on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an expenditure until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of 
net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The 
Village's defened outflows and deferred inflows are resources related to pensions. 

Compensated Absences: 

Allowable annual vacation and sick leave is prescribed by municipal ordinance, based 
on length of continuous employment by the Village, accrued on an employment 
atmiversary basis, and accrued to specified maximums. 

The Village's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follows: 

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated 
absences with similar characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits 
are earned by the employees if both of the following conditions are met: 

1. The employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services 
already rendered. 

2. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employee for the 
benefits through paid time off or some other means, such as cash payments 
at termination or retirement. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a liability for sick leave should be accrued 
using one of the following approaches: 

1. An accrual for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is 
probable that the benefits will result in tennination payments, rather than be 
taken as absences due to illness or other contingencies, such as medical 
appointments and funerals. 

2. Altemativcly, a governmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave 
liability based on the sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by 
those employees who currently are eligible to receive tennination payments 
as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future 
to receive such payments. 

No liability existed as of December 31, 2018 for accrued compensated absences 
resulting from unused vacation time at the end of the year and no liability was 
recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. 

Compensated absences arc paid from the fund responsible for the employee's 
compensation. 

Equity Classifications: 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is classified 
as net position and classified into two components: 

1. Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation. 

2. Unrestricted - consists of all other assets. 

ln the fund financial statements, goverrunental fund equity is classified as unassigned 
fund balance. These statements provide more clearly defined fund balance categories 
to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the Village's fund balances 
more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the 
spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I. Nonspendable - amounts that arc not in a spendable form (such as inventory) 
or are required to be maintained intact; 

2. Restricted- amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such 
as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through 
constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation; 

3. Committed- amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Village itself, 
using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be repOited as 
committed, amounts ca1mot be used for any other purpose unless the Village 
takes the same highest level of action to remove or change the constraint; 

4. Assigned- amounts that the Village intends to use for a specific purpose; intent 
can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the 
governing body delegates the authority; 

5. Unassigned- amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are 
reported only in the General Fund. 

Revenue Recognition- Property and Sales/Use Taxes: 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are 
levied by the Village in September or October, are actually billed to the taxpayers in 
November, and are due and payable on or before December 31 of the same year or the 
unpaid taxes become delinquent. The Village bills and collects its own property taxes 
using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Morehouse Parish. The 
Village's property tax revenues are recognized as deferred revenue when levied. 

Sales/use taxes collected and held by other governments at year end on behalf of the 
Village and those collected by other governments and remitted to the Village within 
60 days after December 31 for preceding months are recognized as revenue. The 
sales/use taxes are collected by Morehouse Sales and Use Tax Commission and 
remitted to the Village. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 2. Cash and Deposits 

The following is a summary of cash and deposits of the Village as of December 31, 2018: 

Non-pooled deposits: 
Non-interest bearing demand deposits 
Time deposits 
Petty cash 

Pooled deposits 

$ 565,919 
498.405 

400 
56.973 

$ 1.121.697 

Under state law, the deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities ov.ned by the fiscal agent bank. The market 
value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the 
amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities arc held jointly in the name of 
the pledging fiscal agent bank and the Village in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. 

As of December 31. 2018, the Village had $1.077,081 in deposits (collected bank 
balances). These deposits were secured from risk by $250,000 of federal deposit insurance 
and $827,081 of pledged securities held by the counterparty's trust department or its agent 
in the Village's name. 

There \\ere no repurchase or re\ erse repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2018. 

Note 3. Property and Sales Taxes 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, property taxes of 10.89 mills were levied on 
property with assessed valuations totaling $6.282,981 as follows: 

General corporate purposes 
Streets 
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Authorized 
Millage 

7.00 
3.66 

Levied 
Millage 
7.13 
3.76 

Expiration 
Date 

Perpetual 
2021 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following are the principal property taxpayers for the Village: 

Percentage of 
Assessed Total Assessed Property 

Tax paver Valuation Valuation Tax Revenue 
Kennedy Rice Dryers, LLC $ 993,924 15.8% $ 10,824 
Nutrien Ag Solutions Inc. 459,596 7.3% 5,005 
Goldman Equipment LLC 398.032 6.3% 4,335 
Grccnpoint Ag, LLC 358.953 5.7% 3,909 
Mer Rouge State Bank 309,169 4.9% 3.367 

Total property taxes levied were $68.422. As of December 31, 2018, property taxes 
receivable ·was $10.648. 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, sales and use taxes of 2% were levied for police 
protection and any and all other useful corporate purposes. These taxes will expire June 
30. 2024. 

Note 4. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from Same 

Restricted assets of $24.434 of the Water and Sewer Fund consists of meter deposits 
collected from utility customers. A related liability of$21.474 has been recorded for the 
payment of amounts that will be owed to the Village and/or refunded to customers upon 
the customers no longer utilizing the system. 

1\ote 5. Interfund Payables 

Interfund payables reported in the fund financial statements as of December 31, 2018 are 
out of balance by $3.388. an amount related to the net pension liability that v.·as recorded 
in the Water and Sewer Fund· s financial statements but only required to be reported in the 
govenunent-wide financial statements of the General Fund. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31,2018 for 
the Village is as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Balance 
January 
1, 2018 

Reclassifi- Balance 
cations/ December 

Increases Decreases 31 , 2018 

Land $ 74,583 $ - ~$ ==-=;!:$~7=4==:,5::f:8:f:3 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Equipment and vehicles 
Streets and sidewalks 
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Equipment and vehicles 
Streets and sidewalks 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

$ 403,779 $ 6,732$ - $ 410,511 
438,272 27,646 ( 28,294) 437,624 

1,143.234 ---- 1,143,234 

$1,985,285 $ 34,378 $( 28.294)$1,991,369 

$ 192,784 $ 
330,873 
128.251 

$ 651.908 $ 

10,859 $ - $ 
35,344 ( 28,825) 
28.581 
74.784 $( 28,825)$ 

203,643 
337,392 
156,832 
697,867 

$1 ,333,377 $( 40,406) :!:$ ===5=3==1 $1,293.502 
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1\0TES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 

Balance 
January 
1, 2018 

Reclassifi- Balance 
cations/ December 

Increases Decreases 31. 2018 

Land 
Construction in progress 

$ 20,110 $ 
40.265 

- $ - s 20,110 
( 40.265) ---

Total business-type assets not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Water and sewer systems 
Buildings 
Equipment and vehicles 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Water and sewer systems 
Buildings 
Equipment and vehicles 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total business-type assets being 

$ 60.375 $ 

$3.502.324 $ 
40,459 
82.585 

$3,625,368 $ 

$2.133,560 $ 
8,730 

64.024 
$2,206,314 $ 

$( 40.265) $ 20,110 

33,807 $ 40,265 $3,576,396 
40.459 
82,585 

33,807 $ 40,265 $3.699.440 

104,407 $ - $2,237,967 
1.012 9,742 
6 561 70.585 

111.980 $ - $2.318.294 

depreciated, net $1,419.054 $( 78,173) $ 40.265$1.381,146 

Depreciation expense of the govemmental activities of $74,784 is reported separately 
in the statement of activities in that the expense essentially serves all functions. 

Note 7. Pension Plans and Other Pension Liabilities 

The Village's employees are proYided \\ith benefits through the following multiple­
employer cost-sharing plans: 

o Municipal Employees Retirement System (Plan A) ("'MERS'') provides retirement 
benefits to employees of all incorporated villages. towns, and cities within the state 
that do not have their own retirement system and have elected to become members 
of the system. 

o Municipal Police Employees Retirement S;stem c-·MPERS"') provides retirement 
benefits to municipal police officers. 
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General Infom1ation About the Plans: 

o MERS membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date 
employed if the employee is on a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours 
per week. Those individuals paid jointly by a participating employer and the parish 
are not eligible for membership, with exceptions outlined in the Louisiana Revised 
Statutes. The Village participates in Plan A and provides retirement benefits to any 
member of Plan A who was hired before January I, 20 I3 meeting one of the following 
criteria: 

• Any age with 25 or more years of creditable service 
• Age 60 with a minimum of I 0 years of creditable service 
• Any age with 5 years of creditable service for disability benefits 
• Survivor' s benefits require 5 years of creditable service at death of member 
• Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service 

with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

For members hired after January I, 2013, benefits are provided to any member ofPlan 
A meeting one of the following criteria: 

• Age 67 with 7 or more years of creditable service 
• Age 62 with 10 or more years of creditable service 
• Age 55 with 30 or more years of creditable service 
• Any age with 25 years of service, exclusive of military service and unused side 

leave, with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

Generally, the monthly retirement allowance for any member ofPlan A consists of an 
amount equal to 3% of the member's monthly average final compensation times years 
of creditable service. Survivor, death, and disability benefits are also provided under 
the plan. 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any 
member who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement 
option plan (DROP) for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During 
such period, employer contributions continue but employee contributions cease. 
Monthly benefits that the member would have received during the DROP period are 
paid into the DROP fund. Interest is eamed when the member has completed DROP 
participation, based on the actual rate ofretum on the investments identified as DROP 
funds for the period. No cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until 
employment has been terminated for at least one full year. 
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The plan receives ad valorem and state revenue sharing funds as employer 
contributions and those amounts are considered support from noncmployer 
contributing entities, but are not considered as special funding situations. 
Nonemployer contributions arc rccogniLed as revenues and excluded from pension 
expense in the government-wide financial statements. 

For the year ended December 31. 2018, the actual employer contribution rate varied 
from 24.75% to 26.00%, which is calculated on an actuarial basis each year. Under 
Plan A, members are required b) state statute to contribute 9.50% of their annual 
covered salary. Contributions to the System also include l/4 of I% (except Orleans 
and East Baton Rouge Parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls 
of each parish. The Village's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years 
ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 were $35,454. $32.568, and $26.445 
respectively. equal to the required contributions for each year. 

o MPERS membership is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed by a 
municipality of the state and engaged in law enforcement. empowered to make arrests, 
provided that the officer is not required to pay Social Security, and otherwise meets 
statutory criteria. For members hired before January I, 2013, the plan provides 
retirement benefits to any member who has: 

• 25 years of creditable service, or 
• 20 years of creditable service who has attained age 50, or 
• 12 years of service who has attained age 55. or 
• 20 years of creditable sef\ice at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are 3 I /3 %of average final compensation (average monthly earnings 
during the highest 36 consecutive months) times the number of years' service, not to 
exceed 100% of final salary. 

For members hired after January I, 2013, benefits are based on the llazardous Duty sub-plan 
or the Nonhazardous Duty sub-plan. Under the Hazardous Out) sub-plan. a member is 
eligible for benefits after: 

• 25 years of creditable sen ice at any age, or 
• 12 years of creditable service at age 55. 

Under the Nonhazardous Duty sub-plan. a member is eligible for benefits after: 

• 30 years of creditable service at any age, or 
• 25 years of creditable service at age 55. or 
• 10 years of creditable sen icc at age 60. 
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Under both sub-plans. a member is eligible for early retirement after 20 years of 
creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are 3% and 2 Yl%, respectively. of average final compensation (average 
monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months) times the number of 
years of creditable service, not to exceed 1 00% of final salary. 

The plan also provides survivor, death, and disability benefits. 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any 
member who is eligible to retire may elect to pa1iicipate in the deferred retirement 
option plan (DROP) for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During 
such period, both employer and employee contributions cease. Monthly benefits that 
the member would have received during the DROP period are paid into the DROP 
fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation, based 
on the actual rate of return Jess one-half percentage point on the investments identified 
as DROP funds for the period. No cost-of-living increases are payable to participants 
until employment has been terminated for at least one full year. 

Contributions by employers are actuarially determined by law, but cannot be less than 
9% of compensation excluding overtime, but including state supplemental pay. For 
the year ended December 31, 2018, employer contributions ranged from 30.75% to 
32.25% for employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 and for Hazardous Duty 
employees hired after January I, 2013. For Nonhazardous Duty employees hired after 
January 1, 2013, employer contributions were 30.75%. 

The plan also receives insurance premium tax monies appropriated by the state 
legislature as additional employer contributions and considered support from a 
nonemployer contiibuting entity, but not considered a special funding situation. 

Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 10.0% of their annual covered 
salary. The Village's contributions to the System for the years ended December 31, 
2018,2017, and 2016 were $15,984,$15,584, and $15,122, respectively, equal to the 
required contributions for each year. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources: 

As of December 31, 2018, the Village reported a total of$458, 154 for its proportionate 
shares of the net pension liability of the plans. as follows: 

MERS 
MPERS 

$ 313,843 
144.311 

$ 458,154 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Village· s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on projections of the Village· s long-te1m share of contributions to the plans 
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers. actuarially 
determined. The Village's proportions of each plan \vere as follows: 

MERS 
MPERS 

Year Ended December 31. 
2018 2017 
.08% 
.02% 

.07% 

.02% 

For the year ended December 31, 20 I 8. the Village recognized pension expense as 
follows: 

MERS 
MPERS 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In addition, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

MERS MPERS Totals 
Deferred outflows of resources: 

Changes in proportion $ 11 '1 02 $ 10,009 $ 21,111 
Changes in assumptions 9,449 9,431 18,880 
Differences between expected 

and actual experience 651 651 
Net difference between 

projected and actual 
eamings on pension 
plan investments 48,094 6,918 55,012 

Village's contributions 
subsequent to the 
measurement date 18.175 8.183 26.358 

Total deferred outflows of 
resources $ 86.820 $ 35.192 $ 122.012 

Deferred inflows of resources: 

Changes in proportion $ $ 9,064 $ 9,064 
Differences between expected 

and actual experience 11.159 7 375 18.5341 

Total deferred inflows of 
resources $ 11.159 $ 16.439 $ 27,598 
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NO fES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Village's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ending December 31. 2018. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and defened inflO\\'S of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending December 3 L 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Total 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

$ 

$ 

40,657 
22,126 

3,651 
1.622 

68.056 

The total pension liabilities in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuations were 
detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included 
in the measurements: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 
Actuarial cost method 
Expected remaining service lives 

MERS 
2.60% 
5.00% 

7.28% 
entry age nonnal 

3 years 

MPERS 
2.60% 

vary from 9.75% for 
first year of service to 
4.25% after 23 years 

7.20% 
entry age normal 

4 years 

Mortality rates for MERS were based on the RP-2000 1-:mployce Table for active 
members. Healthy Annuitant Table for healthy annuitants, and Disabled Lives 
Mortality Tables for disabled annuitants. Mortality rate assumptions for MPERS were 
based on experience studies performed on plan data (for the period July 1. 2009 
through June 30, 2014). 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The investment rates of return were dctennined based on expected cash flows which 
assume that contributions from plan members will be made at current contribution 
rates and that contributions from the Village will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates approved by the Louisiana Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee (the .. System"'), taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on these assumptions. the plans· fiduciary net position was 
projected to be a\'ailable to make all projected future benefit pa) ments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the investment rate of return on plan investments was applied 
as the discount rate to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Arithmetic Real Rates of Return for Each Major Asset Class: 

For the year ended December 31. 20 18. the following summarizes real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in the plans' target asset allocation: 

Target Asset Long-Tenn Expected 
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return 

MERS: 
Public equity 50% 2.2% 
Public fixed income 35% 1.5% 
Alternatives 15% 0.6% 

Totals 100% 4.3% 

MPERS: 
Equity 52% 3.6% 
Fixed income 22% 0.5% 
Alternatives 20% 1.1% 
Other 6% 0.1% 

Totals 100% 5.3% 

Sensitivity of the Village's Proportionate Shares of the Net Pension Liabilities to 
Changes in the Discount Rate: 

The following presents the Village· s proportionate shares of the net pension liabilities 
of the plans, calculated using the discount rates as shown above, as well as what the 
Village's proportionate shares of the net pension liabilities would be if they were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MERS (current rate 7.50%) 
MPERS (current rate 7.50%) 

1% Decrease 
$ 403J60 

202.797 

Current 
$ 313,843 

144 311 

1% Increase 
$ 237.608 

95.243 

Totals $ 605.957 $ 458,154 $ 332.851 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 

Detailed information about the plans' fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued financial statements of the plans. 

Note 8. Postcmployment Benefits Other than Pensions 

Contributions and Benefits: 

Retirees at age 60 with 20 years of service or 25 years of service without regard to age 
are eligible to participate in the Village's hcalthcare plan. Benefits are provided through 
a Blue Cross Blue Shield medical plan to age 65. A Medicare supplement plan is 
provided beginning at age 65 through AARP. The Village contributes I 00% of the cost 
of current year premiums for eligible retired employees. 

Benefit provisions are established by the Village. Coverage is provided for the life of the 
retiree. 

As of December 31, 201 8, six active employees and two retired employees were 
currently receiving benefit payments. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: 

The net OPEB liability is the difference betv;een the total OPEB liability and the plan 
fiduciary net position. The plan fiduciary net position is zero for plans with no dedicated 
plan assets. To be included as assets of the plan, the assets mut be held in an irrevocable 
trust for the exclusive purpose of providing post-retirement benefits. Changes in benefit 
terms are recognized immediately. Changes in assumptions and experience gains/losses 
arc amortized over the average remaining service of active employees and inactive 
participants. Investment gains/losses are amortized over five years. 
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Changes in Total OPEB Liability: 

Balance - December 31, 2017 
Add net GASB 45 difference 

Balance- December 31, 2017 (restated) 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 
Interest 
Benefit payments 

Net change in total OPEB liability 

Net OPEB obligation, end of year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

( 
$ 

$ 

321,693 
72,220 

393,913 

11,493 
16,509 
5,488) 

22,514 

416,427 

As of December 31,2018,$168,038 and $248,389 ofthe obligation are reported in the 
governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively, in the government­
wide financial statements. 

Annual OPEB Cost: 

The Village's estimated annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 
2018 and the four preceding fiscal years are shown below: 

Fiscal Percentage of 
Year Ended Annual Amount Annual OPEB Net OPEB 

December 31, OPEB Cost Contributed Cost Contributed Obligation 
2018 $ 28,002 $ 5,488 19.59% $416,427 
2017 83,721 5,874 7.02% 321,693 
2016 81,237 5,488 6.76% 243,846 
2015 64,069 6,124 9.56% 168,097 
2014 61,604 5,998 9.74% 110,152 
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Funded Status and Funding Progress: 

As of December 31 , 2018, and for the three preceding valuations, the actuarial accrued 
liability for benefits, the covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the plan), and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was as follows: 

Unfunded 
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a 

Actual Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage 
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered 

Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Pavroll Payroll 
12/31/18 $0 $416,427 $416,427 0% $211,432 0% 
12/31117 0 872,339 872,339 0% 206,982 0% 
12/31/16 0 872,339 872,339 0% 196,490 0% 
12/31115 0 624,563 624,563 0% 189,488 0% 
12/31 /14 0 624,563 624,563 0% 185,998 0% 

The projection of future benefits for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occunence of events far into 
the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and 
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information, presents multi-trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 

Methods and Assumptions: 

Actuarial method - Individual entry age normal cost method with level percentage of 
projected salary. 

Service cost- Determined for each employee as the actuarial present value of benefits 
allocated to the valuation year. The benefit attributed to the valuation year is that 
incremental portion of the total projected benefit earned during the year in accordance with 
the plan's benefit formula. This allocation is based on each participant's service between 
date of hire and date of expected termination. 

Total OPEB liability- The actuarial present value of benefits allocated to all periods prior 
to the valuation year. 

Discount rate- 4.1% (1.1% real rate ofreturn plus 3.0% inflation). 
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Healthcarc cost trend rate - level 5.0%. 

Effect of Affordable Care Act (ACA)- The excess coverage excise tax penalty of the ACA 
has been postponed until the plan year beginning in 2022 and is not included in the 

projection of benefits. This plan has current medical costs well under the limits in current 
law. Current legislative discussions include both repeal ofthe excise tax and postponement 
beyond 2022. 

Mortality- RPH-2014 total table with projection MP-2018. 

Turnover- Termination rates from theM ERS actuarial valuation repor1 were used for non­
public safety employees and termination rates from MPERS actuarial valuation report were 
used for police employees. 

Retirement rates- Same source for termination rates are used. 

Retiree contributions - none. 

Salary scale- 3.5%. 

Valuation methodology and terminology- GASB accounting methodology was used to 
detern1ine the post-retirement medical benefit obligations. 

Valuation and measurement date- December 3 I. 20 I 8. 

Sensitivity ofTotal OPEB Liability: 

Discount rate 
Hcalthcare cost trend rates 

I% Decrease No Change 
$ 361,318 $ 416,427 
$ 352,203 $ 416,427 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: 

1% Increase 
$ 484,328 
$ 498,241 

According to paragraph !57 ofGASB 75, differences between ( 1) the expected and actual 
experience and (2) the changes in assumptions are recognized in OPEB expense using a 
systematic and rational method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with OPEB through the OPEB 
plan (active employees and inactive members) determined as of the beginning of the 
measurement period. 
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Note 9. Current Year Adoption ofNew Accounting Standard and Restatement of Net Position 

The Village adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This standard requires that the Village's 
beginning net position be restated to rcOcct the effects of this change in accounting 
principle. The following provides a summary of the change in the total net position as of 
December 31. 2017 in the government-wide financial statements: 

Total net position- December 31, 2017 
(as previously reported) 
Remove G/\SB 45 12-31-17 liability 
Difference 
Add GASB 75 12-31-17 liability 

Total net position - December 31. 20 17(restated) 

Note 10. Contingencies and Risk Management 

Govcmmcntal 
Activities 
$ I ,954,444 

116.300 
( 2.313) 
( 159.582) 

$ 1,908,849 

Business-Type I 
Activities 
$ 1,361 ,817 

205,393 

( 234.331) 

$ 1.332,879 

As of December 31, 2018, there was no pending or threatening litigation involving the 
Village. 

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets: errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters. 
The Village carries commercial insurance for all risks ofloss, including workers' 
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. There were no significant 
reductions in the insurance coverage during the fiscal year. Settlement amounts have not 
exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or three prior fiscal years. 

The Village occasionally participates in state and federal grant programs, which are 
governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the 
respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; 
therefore. to the extent that the Village has not complied with the rules and regulations 
governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required. In the opinion of 
Village management, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance 
with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision 
has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies. 

Note 11. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events were evaluated through April 4. 2019, which is the day the financial 
statements were available to be issued. and it was determined that no significant events 
had occurred requiring disclosure. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY DJFORMATIO>J (Part 2 of2) 



Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and pennits 
I ntcrgovernmental 
Fees. charges. and 

VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCIIEDULE­
GOVERNMENTALFUND-GEl\ERALFUND 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual 

$ 377,000 $ 408.000 $ 381,896 
74,000 97,000 77,851 
46,000 20.000 19,590 

commissions for sen•iccs 12,000 16.000 13,440 
Fines and forfeitures 21,000 13.000 12,904 
Interest and miscellaneous 3 000 9 000 8 737 

Total revenues $ 533,000 $ 563,000 $ 514,418 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government $ 343,460 $ 283,120 $ 286,276 
Public safety 207,220 204,700 201,950 
Public works 11,000 12,000 13.285 

Capital outlay 25.000 37 000 34.378 
Total expenditures s 586,680 $ 536.820 $ 535,889 

Excess (deficiency) of 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

$( 26.104) 
( 19.149) 
( 410) 

( 2,560) 
( 96) 
( 263) 

$( 48.582) 

$( 3,156) 
2.750 

( 1 ,285) 
2,622 

$ 931 

revenues over expenditures $( 53,680) $ 26,180 $( 21,471) $( 47,651) 

Other financing uses: 
Operating transfer out { 22.000) 22.000 

Net change in fund balance $( 53,680) $ 4,180 $( 2L471) $( 25,651) 

Fund balance- beginning 798 714 869,000 869.032 32 

Fund balance - ending $ 745.034 $ 873.180 $ 847,561 SC 25.619) 
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Actuarial 

VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN 

December 31, 2018 

(b) 
(a) Actuarial (b-a) 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded (alb) (c) 

((b-a)/c) 
UAALas a 
Percentage 

Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Paxroll 

12/31/18 $ - $ 416,427 $416,427 0% $ 211,432 0% 
12/31/17 872,339 872,339 0% 206,982 0% 
12/31/16 872,339 872,339 0% 196,490 0% 
12/31115 624,563 624,563 0% 189,488 0% 
12/31 /14 624,563 624,563 0% 185,998 0% 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Percentage of 
Fiscal Annual Net 

Year Ended Annual Amount OPEB Cost OPEB 
December 3 I , OPEB Cost Contributed Contributed Obligation 

2018 $28,002 $ 5,488 19.59% $416,427 
2017 83,721 5,874 7.02% 321,693 
2016 81,237 5,488 6.76% 243,846 
2015 64,069 6,124 9.56% 168,097 
2014 61,604 5,998 9.74% 110,152 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Year Ended December .1L 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Proportion of net pension liability .08% .07% .07% .07% .07% 

Proportionate share of net pension 
liability $313,843 $304,959 $281,027 $243,207 $ 169,324 

Covered employees' payroll $ 138,380 $ 131 ,295 $ 122,481 $ 116,201 $ 110,843 

Propo1tionate share of net pension 
liability as a percentage of 
covered employees' payroll 226.80% 232.27% 229.45% 209.30% 152.76% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage oftotal pension 
liability 66.94% 62.49% 62.11% 66.18% 73.99% 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contractually required 
contribution 

Contributions in relation 
to contractually 
required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered employees' payroll 

Contribution as a percentage of 
covered employees· payroll 

Year Ended December .1L 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

$ 34,239 $ 30,238 $ 24,503 $ 23,191 $ 20,783 

34.239 30,238 24.503 23,191 20,783 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

$ 138,380 $ 131,295 $ 122,481 $ 116,201 $ 110,843 

24.75% 23.03% 20.01% 19.96% 18.75% 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUJSIAl\A 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARI:: OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Year Ended December .lL 
2018 2017 2016 2015 

Proportion of net pension liability .02% .02% .02% .02% 

Propo11ionate share of net pension 

2014 

.02% 

liability $ 144,311 $ 133,968 $ 163,574 $ 141.058 $ 116.688 

Covered employees· payroll $ 47,306 $ 43,594 $ 42.888 $ 42,581 $ 41.746 

Proportionate share of net pension 
liability as a percentage of 
covered employees' payroll 305.06% 307.31% 381.40% 331.27% 279.52% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of total pension 
liability 71.89% 70.08% 66.04% 66.18% 75.10% 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

Y car Ended December .lL 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractually required 
contribution $ 15.491 $ 14.545 $ 14,422 $ 14.817 $ 14.921 

Contributions in relation 
to contractually 
required contribution 15 491 14 545 14.422 14.817 14 921 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Covered employees· payroll $ 47,306 $ 43.594 $ 42.888 $ 42.581 $ 41,746 

Contribution as a percentage of 
covered employees· payroll 32.75% 33.36% 33.63% 34.80% 35.74% 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF MAYOR'S AND ALDERMEN'S COMPI-:NSATION 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2018 

The schedule of compensation paid to the mayor and aldermen is presented in compliance 
with I louse Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. 
Compensation of the board members is included in the general government expenditures of the 
General Fund. The mayor and aldem1en receive compensation pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 
404.1. 

Name and Title 
John D. McAdams. IlL Mayor 
Allen Spires, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem 
Tim Mitchell, Alderman 
Richard Blackwell. Aldennan 

Total mayor's and aldermen's compensation 
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Compensation 
$ 11,400 

2,700 
2,400 
2 400 

$ 18.900 



Purpose 
Salary 
Benefits- insurance 
Benefits - retirement 

VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE Or COMPENSATION, BENEFITS. 
AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31,2018 

Agency Head Name: John D. McAdams, IlL Mayor 

Total compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head 
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Amounts 
$ 11,400 

455 
2.964 

$ 14,819 



HILL, INZINA & COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 0 . INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
Fl~ANCIAL REPORTI G AND ON COMPLIANCI--,_ f.l\0 0 I HER ~ATfERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FfNANCIAL STAl EYIENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOT ERXMEXT A l ·'D!T!XG STAXDARDS 

Honorable John D. McAdams, III, Mayor. 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Village of Mer Rouge, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gorernment Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. the financial statements of the 
govcmmcntal activities. the business-type activities. and each major fund of Village of Mer Rouge. 
Louisiana (the .. Village .. ). as of and for the year ended December 31. 2018. and the related notes to 
the financial statements.\\ hich collecti\·ely comprise the Vi II age· s basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated April4. 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and pcrfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village· s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village ·s 
intcmal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the efTectiveness of the Village ·s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course ofperfonning their assigned functions. to prevent. 
or detect and COJTcct , misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Village's financial statements v.ill not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significance deficiency is a deficiency. or a combination of 
deficiencies. in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness. yet important enough to 
merit attention b) those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore. material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control. described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2018-1, that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we perforn1ed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the detem1ination of financial statement amounts. I lowcver, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and , accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-2. 

Village's Response to Finding 

The Village's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Village· s responses were not subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on them. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Village's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the inforn1ation and use of management, the council 
members, others within the Village, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

Is/ Hill, lnzina & Co. 

April4, 2019 
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VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS WITH 
MANAGEMENTS RESPONSE AND PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTION 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31 , 2018 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities. and each major fund of Village of Mer Rouge, Louisiana (the .. Village .. ). as of and for the 
year ended December 31. 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Village's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 4, 
2019. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government AudWng 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our audit of the financial 
statements as of December 31, 2018 resulted in an unqualified opinion. 

Section I -Summary of Auditor's Report 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit ofFinancial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing .S'tandards 

2018-1 

Internal Control 
Significant Deficiencies 181 Yes o No Mat erial Weaknesses o Yes 181 No 

Compliance 
Material to Financial Statements 181 Yes o No 

Section U - Financial Statement Findings 

Inadequate Segregation of Duties (initial citing as of the for the two years ended 
December 31. 1987) 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Adequate segregation of duties is essential to a proper internal control 
structure. 

The segregation of duties is inadequate to provide effective internal 
control. 

The condition is due to economic limitations. 

Not determined. 

Recommendation: No action is recommended. 
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2018-2 

Management's 
response and 
planned cor­
rective action: \Vc concur with the tinding but it is not economically feasible for 

corrective action to he taken. 

1\:oncompliancc with Local Government Budget Act (initial citing) 

Criteria: 

Condition: 

Cause: 

Errect: 

The Local Government Budget Act requires that the chief executive 
onicer or equivalent noti IY in writing the governing authority during 
the year when actual receipts and other financing sources plus 
projected revenue collections and other linancing sources for the year 
fail to meet budgeted revenues and other linancing sources by 5% or 
more, or \\hen actual expenditures and other linancing uses plus 
projected expenditures and other financing uses to year end exceed 
budgeted expenditures and other financing uses by 5% or more. 

Actual revenues and other financing sources of $514A 18 or the 
Genera l Fund failed to meet budgeted revenues and other financing 
sources of $563.000 for the year ended December 3 L 2018 by 
$48.582 or 8.6%. 

The majority of the unfavorable variance or actual revenues not 
meeting budgeted revenues resulted from actual ad valorem taxes of 
$381,896 being recorded \Vhile $408.000 was budgeted. 

The Village is in violation ofthe Local Government Budget Act. 

Recommendation: The I ,ocal Government Budget Act should be reviewed to ensure 
compliance with all requirements. 

Management· s 
response and 
planned cor­
rective action: We concur \\ ith the finding. The Board did adopt a budget 

amendment. However, the ad valorem tax revenue line in the budget 
contained a formula that incorrectly estimated re\ enue to be collected 
ror the remainder ol'thc year at the time of amendment. The error did 
not result in additional spending. We will be alert for such issues in 
the future. 

Section Ill - Management Letter 

None issued. 
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2017- 1 

VILLAGE OF MER ROUGE. LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Section II- Financial Statement Findings 

Inadequate Segregation of Duties 

Adequate segregation of duties is essential 
to a proper internal control stntcture. 

Section Il l- Management Letter 

Unresolved- 2018-1. 

1\one issued. 
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HILL, INZINA & COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Members of the Board of Aldermen of Village of Mer Rouge and the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor: 

We have perfonned the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Village of Mer 
Rouge, (the ''Village") and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and 
compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for 
the fiscal period January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018. The Village's management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SA UPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American lnstitutc of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standard'>. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility 
of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has 
been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the Village's written policies and procedures and observe that they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and 
the Village 's operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

**The Village had wrinen policies and procedures addressing these specifics relative to 
budgeting. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

**The Village had written policies and procedures addressing (I) personnel with 
authority to authorize purchases, (2) purchases requiring purchase orders, and (3) process 
of receiving permission to make purchases. The Village had no wTitten policies or 
procedures addressing these other specifics relative to purchasing. 



c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

**The Village had written policies and procedures addressing these specifics relative to 
disbursements. 

d) Receipts/Collectiom, including receiving, recording. and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

**The Village had written policies and procedures addressing receiving, recording, and 
preparing deposits but had no written policies and procedures addressing the 
completeness of all collections. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving 
time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

**The Village had written policies and procedures addressing payroll processing and 
reviewing and approving records. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
tem1s and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

**The Village had written policies and procedures addressing the dollar amount of public 
works projects requiring contracts but no written policies and procedures addressing 
these other specifics relative to contracting. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable). including (I) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses. (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g .. detetmining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

**The Village had no written policies or procedures addressing these specifics relative to 
credit cards. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (I) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements. and (4) required 
approvers. 

**The Village had \Vritten policies and procedures addressing travel and expense 
reimbursement. 

i) Ethics, including (I) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-
1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations. and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the Vi !!age's 
ethics policy. 

**The Village had no written policies and procedures addressing these specifics relative 
to ethics. 



j) Debt Service, including ( 1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and ( 4) debt service requirements. 

**The Village had no written policies and procedures addressing these specifics relative 
to debt service. 

Collections 

2. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period w·here deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select five deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than five). 

3. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e. five collection locations for five deposit sites), obtain and inspect written 
policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures. 
inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job 
duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

**The Village had only one collection location with all funds being received by the clerk 
or a person treated as contract labor who works only in the clerk's absence. A single cash 
drawer was maintained. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits. unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

**The Village's clerk and the contract laborer were both responsible for collecting cash 
and preparing/making bank deposits. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

**The Village's clerk and the contract laborer were responsible for collecting cash and 
the clerk was also responsible for posting collection entries without another 
employee/official being responsible for reconciliations. 

d) The employec(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible 
for collecting cash, unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

**The Village's clerk and the contract laborer were responsible for collecting cash and 
the clerk was also responsible for posting collection entries without another 
employee/official being responsible for reconciliations. 



4. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash arc covered by a bond or 
insurance policy for theft. 

**The Village's clerk and contract laborer who had access to cash were bonded and covered 
under the Village's crime policy. respectively. 

5. Obtain a listing of bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main 
operating account. Select the main operating account and randomly select four additional 
accounts (or all accounts ifless than five). Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 
five bank accounts selected (select the next deposit date clu-onologically if no deposits were 
made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are 
made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than 
hank .statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log. 
daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the ten 
deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

**Sequentially pre-numbered receipts were used. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

**Collection documentation was traced to the deposit slips. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

**Deposit slip totals agreed to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than ten miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $1 00). 

**All but one of the ten randomly selected deposits \·Vere made within one business day 
of receipt. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

**The deposits were traced from the bank statements to the general ledger. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and 

petty cash purchases) 

6. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select five locations (or all locations if 
less than five). 

7. For each location selected under #6 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no VvTitten policies and procedures, inquire 



of employees about their job duties). and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that: 

a) At least two employees arc involved in initiating a purchase request. approving a 
purchase, and placing an order/making the purchase. 

**Job duties ''ere not properly segregated. 

b) At least two emplO) ecs arc invoh·ed in processing and approving pa) ments to ,·endors. 

**Job duties \\ere not properly segregated. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes 
to vendor ntcs. 

**Job duties were not properly segregated. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the pa) ment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to mail '' ho is not responsible for processing payments. 

**Job duties were not properly segregated. 

8. For each location selected under #6 above. obtain the Village's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select five 
disbursements for each location. obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original imoice/billing statement. 

**The five randomly selected disbursements matched the related original invoice/billing 
statement. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g .. initial/date. 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #7. as applicable. 

**There ,..,·as no evidence of segregation of duties on the tested disbursement 
documentation. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards!P-Cards 

9. Obtain from management a listing of all acti\e credit cards. bank debit cards. fuel cards. and 
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period. including the card numbers and the names of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete. 

10. Using the listing prepared by management. randomly select five cards (or all cards if less 
than five) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or 
combined statement for each card (for a debit card. randomly select one monthly bank 
statement). obtain supporting documentation. and: 



a) Obsen e that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g.. original receipts for credit/debit card purchases. 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) ''as re\ iewed and approYed. in writing, 
by someone other than the authorized card holder. (Note: Requiring such approval may 
constrain the legal authority of certain public oflicials (e.g .. mayor of a Lawrason Act 
municipality); these instances should not be rcported.)J 

**The five monthly statements or combined statements were reviewed and approved, in 
writing, by someone other than the authoriLcd card holder. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees \Vere not assessed on the selected statements. 

**Finance charges nor late fees were assessed on the selected statements. 

Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under # 10 above, 
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) 
from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each 
card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it 
is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely ·what was 
purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

**Each transaction was supported by an original itemized receipt identifYing precisely 
what was purchased and written documentation of the business/public purpose. None of 
the transactions were for meal charges. However. while perfonning this procedure, a 
meal receipt (not itemized) for $76 for two people's lunch meal was observed. 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursemeuts1 (excluding card lrausact_i_oJ_ls~) ___ _ 

1 I. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select five reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the five reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www. 
gsa.gov). 

**Each reimbursement selected was paid using a daily per diem of $125 v.:hether meals 
were served at the conventions or not. The S 125 per day \'.:as also paid on the first and 
last day of travel. Two of the five reimbursements selected also included payment for 
mileage at the established rate of 54.5 cents. 



It was also noted while perfom1ing this procedure that all related hotel rates paid \vhile 
attending these conventions exceeded the established rates even though the majority were 
blocked specifically for the attendees. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs. observe that the reimbursement is supp011ed by an 
original itemi1.ed receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

**None of the selected reimbursements were paid using actual costs. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

**All selected reimbursements were suppo1ied by documentation of the business/public 
purpose. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was rc' iewcd and approved, in \\Titing. by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

**All selected reimbursements were reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Payroll and Personnel 

12. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select five 
employees/officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files. and agree paid salaries to 
authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

13. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the five employees/officials 
selected under # 14 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible 
to earn leave and does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the 
elected official is earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official should 
document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

**Four of the five selected employees documented their daily attendance and leave 
except that two who were required to punch a time clock did not on all days in the pay 
period. Daily attendance was not documented for the other employee who was salaried. 
Leave records were maintained in v.Titing by the clerk for the selected employees. 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees/officials. 

**There was no documentation that supervisors approved the attendance and leave ofthe 
five selected employees. 



c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the Village's 
cumulative leave records. 

**Leave accrued or taken during the pay period was maintained in writing by the clerk 
for full time employees. 

14. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees/officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' 
cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' authorized pay 
rates in the employee/officials' persmmel files. 

**All employees that terminated were pati-time. 

15. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, 
retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums 
have been paid, and associated fmms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

**It was noted while perfom1ing other procedures that all monthly retirement reports were 
filed past the due date and contributions were also paid late. 

Ethics 

16. Using the five randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #13 under ''Payroll and 
Personnel" above· obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

**Documentation was not made available to demonstrate that any of the five selected 
employees/officials complete the required ethics training. 

b. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested tlrrough 
signature verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal 
pe1iod. 

**The Village had no written policies and procedures addressing ethics. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we perfonned 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing perfmmed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 



Management's response- We will take the auditor's comments under advisement and take 
corrective action as deemed necessary. 

Is/Hill, Jm:ina & Co. 

Bastrop, Louisiana 

April 4, 2019 




